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Mission Statement

Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra is united in its commitment to
offering excellence in Chinese music. With a contemporary
momentum and a professional spirit, we aim to strive for the
peak in music and attain the status of a world-class orchestra
that is the pride of Hong Kong people.

BEPEBEMEER L EBEED
Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra is subvented by
-

the Leisure and Cultural Services Department 1
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Flnanual Highlights

FBHEHKS' 000

BA 59,762 58,574 1,188 2.03%
Total income
Fegal 58,110 55,119 2,991 5.4%

Total expenditure

Bk 1,652 3,455 (1,803) (52.2%)
Surplus
BEFE 15,400 13,748 1,652 12%
Net worth

\ /

AR Sources of Income - 2007 (2006)

19% (18%)

Government Subsidy

Bete REAMWRA
Concerts and Other Income

81% (82%)

I 5 Total Income HK$59,761,886 (HK$58,574,391)

F 44 Distribution of Expenses - 2007 (2006)

1% (9%) 14% (15%) . & RERRAX

Payroll and Related Expenses

ﬁ?iﬂ%fﬁﬁ%&iﬁﬁl\iﬁﬂjiﬂj

‘ e Marketing and Overseas Tour Expenses
SEER

Concert Production Costs

HihiB H
Other Operating Expenses

70% (73%)

@3 &% Total Expenditures HK$58,109,613 (HK$55,119,473)
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Chairman's Statement

The Orchestra entered its 31st Orchestral Season in the past year, marking a new milestone in the Orchestra’s
development. | was appointed Chairman of the Council in October 2006. Taking this opportunity, | would like to
extend my most sincere gratitude to the past Chairman Ms Carlye Tsui for her contributions to the Orchestra and for her
continuous support as Council Advisor after retirement from her chairmanship. | would also like to thank my colleagues
in the Council for their support and encouragement.

Based on the established guiding policies, the Council and the Orchestra continued to promote Chinese musical
culture on all aspects in the past year. In addition to the rich and varied concert programmes for the local and overseas
audiences, the Orchestra has also organized an array of themed instruments festivals and the Cadenzas of Hong Kong
project. It has undertaken the work on musical instruments development and music groups, expanded the Hong Kong
Children Orchestra, the Hong Kong Junior Chinese Orchestra and the musical instruments classes, conducted outreach
concerts, and set up the "Music for Love" scheme. During the year, Mr Yan Huichang was also invited to speak at an
international conference. All these are indications that the Orchestra is all set to face the challenges of a new era. The
achievements made by the Orchestra have also attracted considerable attention. Not only has the Orchestra produced
quality concerts, but it has also succeeded in establishing a close interactive relationship with audiences from all walks
of life through different activities and programmes. Seeing that there is an increasing interest in Chinese music shown
by the local and overseas audiences and greater emphasis on education of Chinese music, nurturing a new generation
of audience and development of environmental-friendly musical instruments, the Orchestra has already prepared itself
for such changing conditions.

This year, the Orchestra continues to develop in a steady yet progressive manner. The Council and the Orchestra are
committed to implementing the mission statement. We seek an alignment on the Orchestra’s development direction
through a variety of programmes. With the government’s grants and sponsorships from the commercial organizations
and individuals, members of the Orchestra work with team spirit, with professionalism and with devotion to drive the
Orchestra forward. Consequently, the Orchestra has achieved satisfactory results in concerts and other development
programmes. The Council has confidence and faith in the future development of the Orchestra.

Finally, | would like to gratefully acknowledge the Hong Kong SAR Government for their support all along the years, the
media and the music critics for their professional advice, the supporting organizations, our friends all over the word and
the audiences for their support and encouragement. Looking ahead, the Orchestra will continue to strive for the peak in
music and to promote Chinese musical culture. We will continue to serve the public with the most beautiful music and
win the acclaim from local the overseas audiences through the rich diversity of Chinese music.

MA.Q W@«a,

Wong Tin Yau, Kelvin

Chairman
20 June 2007
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Artistic Director's Review

In September 2007, the Orchestra entered its 31st Orchestral Season. Now, as we look back on the 30 years of our history,
in every step forward we took and every accolade we received, we can see the concern and the support of the citizens, the
business sectors, supporting organizations and the Government of Hong Kong, as well as the zealous efforts of the Council,
the artistic advisers, the generations of Music Directors, members of the Orchestra and our administrative staff. We have
grown from strength to strength thanks to the artistic input from local and international composers, artists, and performing
groups. In the capacity of the Orchestra’s current Artistic Director, | would like to take this opportunity to thank all our friends
and colleagues - without you, we could not have achieved so much.

"A life in the arts is a perpetual search." For all these decades, the Orchestra has never slackened in our drive to help
create original music. We have commissioned numerous composers and arrangers all over the world to add to our
repertoires. We have also joined hands with many talented artists in performances. In 2006, the Orchestra launched a
"Hong Kong Cadenza Project” to let the world see what important contributions the Hong Kong composers have made,
or can make, to the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra. In addition to the field trips and workshops on Chinese music, the
Orchestra has also invited twenty distinguished local composers to look for inspiration and subject matter in the 18
districts of Hong Kong. Each is invited to write a piece that lasts for 3 to 6 minutes, to be premiered at major concerts
between the 30th and the 32nd Orchestral Seasons. Following the concert in the year 2005/2006 to pay tribute to
Mr Doming Lam on his eightieth birthday, the Orchestra then organized another concert in our dedication series for
composer Mr Chan Wing-wah. Another major programme was the HKCO Virtuosi Series. Concerts in this Series included
the "Hugin World Ngai Kwun-wa" and the "Whiz Kids’ Drum Ensemble". This Series serves as a platform to showcase
outstanding talent of our members, and the dedication and hard word they put into their chosen field.

In a cosmopolitan city like Hong Kong, the East-West influence has long exposed the people to the different genres of
music. During the year, the Orchestra conducted three concerts that were characterized by a blend of East-West culture.
They included "The East-West Crossover", "International Congress of the International Society for Performing Arts -
Happy Together Special Concert" and "2007 Hong Kong Arts Festival - Music about China". Apart from the Chinese
composers, the Orchestra has also invited some overseas composers to write music for Chinese orchestra, which have
been well-received by the audience. Today’s global village allows cultural exchange and understanding of different
regions of the world. Everyone in the world wishes to learn about China’s rich and varied culture. The Hong Kong
Chinese Orchestra is committed to presenting the best of our national artistic culture to the world.

The Hong Kong Drum Festival was held for its fourth straight year. We are most pleased to see that the Festival has been
widely supported by the public. During the year, the Orchestra was invited to participate in the International Festival of
Inclusive Arts and perform in the programme "Drumming Across the Harbour". The drum music has once again brought
power and motivation to the participants, continuing the spirit of "sharing joy with others is always better than having
fun alone". Through participation, the Hong Kong citizens were able to experience the colourful world of Chinese
music. The Hong Kong Zheng Festival also came to its conclusion on a positive note. Zheng, another favourite musical
instrument of Hong Kong Citizens, has brought to participants another memorable arts festival.

During the year, the Orchestra was invited to perform for our fellow countrymen in a number of cities in the Mainland
China. The Orchestra was also invited by Hong Kong Trade Development Council to perform in London and Vietnam
as Hong Kong's Cultural Ambassador. Besides, the Orchestra has actively participated in the set up of the Hong Kong
Chinese Instrumental Music Association. We also performed at the establishment celebration dinner in October
2006, in an effort to further the development of Chinese orchestral music and ultimately help build a harmonious and
prosperous society.



Artistic Director's Review

In 2006/2007, | was invited to speak at the International Congress of the International Society for Performing Arts and
Asian Cultural Cooperation Forum on the topic "Remaking of Traditions — Music" and "Asian Arts, Culture and Modernity-
Dialogue between Tradition and Modernity" respectively. | was also invited to be the guest host of Close to Culture
(October) at Finance Info Channel of Hong Kong Cable Television. Through these channels, we were able to further
the study in Chinese musical culture and consequently present such culture to the international community, to our
counterparts in the local community and to the public in systematic and orderly manner. Such channels have also
enabled the Orchestra to present itself from all aspects, reflecting the harmonious development of the Orchestra. This
forms an important step for the Orchestra on our way to become the icon of Hong Kong culture.

/igj 2 _
Yan Huichang

Artistic Director
20 June 2007
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Executive Director's Review

In order to enhance our contribution to society, the Orchestra has been achieving more and more each year, even though
resources have been reduced. Apart from fulfilling the requirement of the number of reqular and outreach concerts held each
year and achieving audience targets as stated in the service contract, the Orchestra has also been proactively undertaking
other activities. In addition to our continuous effort to promote Chinese musical culture, the Orchestra has also strengthened
its work in expanding the composition of the audience and the range of music education, so as to further the development of

Chinese music in Hong Kong.

During the year, through the joint efforts of both the Artistic and Administration Departments, the Orchestra organised
37 sets, totaling 69 sessions of concerts in various formats and themes, 122 outreach performances, 13 overseas
performances and two themed instruments festival, namely the Hong Kong Zheng Festival and the 4th Hong Kong
Drum Festival. The Hong Kong Zheng Festival was successfully held with the support from 13 local Zheng organisations.
The Drum Festival’s Hong Kong Synergy 24 Drum Competition has been warmly supported by the Hong Kong citizens
along the years. As of to-date, there have been an accumulative 240 teams participating in this competition, with
the total accumulative number of participants reaching 2,660. The competition has brought together the physically
handicapped persons and the able bodied, as well as the children and the elderly. The youngest among all participants
aged 4 and the eldest aged 83. We are pleased to see that the Festival has become a major annual event in Hong Kong
and that the drum groups are experiencing growth owing to the increasing popularity of the Festival.

In the year 2006/2007, the Orchestra, in collaboration with Mr Man Chin-shui, Mr Leung Hon-wai, Ms Wan Fei-yin and
Ms Leung Siu-sum, performed a Valentine’s concert titled "Chinese Romance Down the Ages". The Orchestra has also
organised a Cantonese Opera New Lyrics Competition, which was well-received by the public. Besides, the Orchestra
was invited to perform in the audio recording of the musical Only You for a total of 50 shows. Actors in the musical
included "Princess of Movie Fans" Ms Connie Chan Po Chu and Mr Adam Cheng, who joined hands with the Orchestra to
promote Chinese music.

The Orchestra spares no efforts in the promotion of Canton music. In addition to outreach performances in
communities and at schools, the Orchestra has also organised a special programme known as "Music all over Hong
Kong's 18 Districts — Cantonese Folk Music Concert". During the year, the Orchestra was invited by the Department of
Culture of the province of Canton to perform at the Guangzhou Xinghai Concert Hall. The Orchestra was also invited
by the Education and Youth Affairs Bureau of Macau to perform for the Macau youngsters, with a view to proactively
promoting Chinese music to the younger generation and to nurturing more young audiences.

The Orchestra launched the "Cadenzas of Hong Kong" project in 2006 as one of the activities in celebration of the
Orchestra’s 30th Anniversary. Composers were invited to write music with a theme about Hong Kong. Field trips and
workshops about Chinese music were also organised. The Orchestra is not alone in carrying out this meaningful project.
Composers and Authors Society of Hong Kong, Hong Kong Culture and Art Foundation, and Hong Kong Composers’
Guild have lent their support and provided sponsorship to make this project happen.

With the broad vision of the Council and its effective stewardship, along with the creativity of the Artistic Director, his
profound knowledge and superb artistic skills, the Orchestra has been enabled to go beyond the promotion of Chinese
music and develop into an all-round organisation with vitality. Today, six years after its incorporation, the Orchestra is
vigorously working towards attaining the status of a world-class orchestra that is the pride of Hong Kong people.

Chin Man-wah Celina

Executive Director
20 June 2007 1



Business Review

HE BoE | BRER Concerts / Special Events
2006
4 A April BB HEH - #5F - 5 - WIESE | Poetry, Painting and Zheng Music

BRALEH - SRAREER

Hong Kong Zheng Festival -
Emotions Recollected in Tranquility

AR RE An East-West Crossover

5H May BRI S RETSER - Release of Majestic Drums IIl VCD, DVD and
ST EH S VCD,DVD K Majestic Drums IV DVD
B EEFEEIVDVD

HNEENRZER - S 2KV

The Hugin World of Ngai Kwun-wa

65 June BERREAGESE - RRAR

ISPA - Happy Together

DEE | — FRED

Music from the Heart | - Music for Tranquility of Mind

DR || — BT REE
LSRG (&

Music from the Heart I -
The HKCO & the Shanghai Conservatory of Music

DEEE || - BFRAERE -
Naisy=g Ol et

Music from the Heart Il - Featuring original
composition over the years and works of the staff
and students of Shanghai Conservatory of Music

BITER—BDREEE

Candenzas of Hong Kong - Field trip to
Chaozhou and Shantou to Study Folk Music

78 July DHEERE B

Celebrating with All-time Favourites Il

SRR - RZBT

Only You

TRAENRE - REE & HKCO

A Vocal Angel from the East - Wu Bixia & HKCO

8 A August B4R S RE - BRHER

International Arts Carnival -
Pluckety Pluck - Chinese Plucked String Music

BTSSR EY I EM -
S TEESV HPDCD RES

Release of Majestic Drums V — The Dynamic
World of Yim Hok-man HPDCD at the Hong
Kong High-End Audio Visual Show

9H September | ETRGEES T SEmM -
B EBEEVDVD

\

Release of Majestic Drums V DVD
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HE FhE | BRIES Concerts / Special Events
2006
9 September | REERRER SIRMEME FF4 HKCO started to provide online streaming

AR THR® music and music files downloading service
FE=TRTEEELS Opening Concert of the 30th Orchestral Season

BERIEG VIl - Bk R

Majestic Drums VII - Mesmerizing Mexico

10 AOctober

BETLERMEEHESERE
BRERVEENCREA ok
Xy REEH

Artistic Director of HKCO Yan Huichang was
invited to be the Guest Host of "Close to
Culture" at Cable News Finance Channel

BEERRERTEARKNER
KRBT HRFXEBRE

The 57th Anniversary of the Founding of the
People’s Republic of China

N DAV

R

Establishment celebration concert of
Hong Kong Chinese Instrumental Music Association

AEAERXNILST

A Tribute to Ng Tai-kong

BEEBENES24X0E

First Round of Hong Kong Synergy 24 Drum
Competition

BEX(LARE - EEREZBRRR
B MBUEH

Annual Dinner of Hong Kong Trade
Development Counil, London 2006

11 ANovember | BTEX—RIIRBMFERES) Cadenzas of Hong Kong - Field trip to Shenzhen
and Huizhou to Study Folk Music
SRS VI - Majestic Drums VIIl And Final Round of
BEBENHS2UANFEEERE Hong Kong Synergy 24 Drum Competition
12 ADecember | BIBRH@hEiTal - EAKBMEZ | The International Festival of Inclusive Arts -
Drumming Across the Harbour
BERRLERREUEIRTT FOHKCQ's Activity - One day tour of Kadoorie Farm,
Botanic Garden and Long Valley
ARMERATHR - By R APEAR B 44 F] Masterly Works - Yan Liangkun & HKCO
fBE20075 F 5448/ 5% - [ES | Kinggold Group - New Year’s Concert
BB BE2007HT F S 4t - BN 2007/Favorview Palce International Salon
EgE8ER Kinggold Group * New Year's Concert 2007
Concert at Xinghai Concert Hall, Guangzhou
\ /

13
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HE FhE | BRES Concerts / Special Events
2006
12 ADecember | RILZ8E - 2EGBMERKE4E - | Music of Dong River - Global Calling New Year Concent
BEY of Folk Music, Concert at Huizhou
2007
1 AJanuary BRoKZEE & HKCO Chan Wing-wah & HKCO
RELERENHEE - Macau Education and Youth Bureau has invited
mIRES - LER% - HKCO to present a series of Chinese music
BRI LR appreciation concerts for their secondary students,
at Macau Cultural Centre
BEUNE Whiz Kid’s Drum Ensemble
BN TrEeRIT 2R - EEEEHASH | The ICBC Guangzhou Evening - Classic of
BIERE - BMNEEGS4EEE | Frances Yip at Xinghai Concert Hall, Guangzhou
2 AFebruary T B 5% AR RIBEAZLE | AIA "Classics of the Century” New Year Concert
HEeRe - BEMNESS2E R | at Xinghai Concert Hall, Guangzhou
REEAK EASBBHLE HKCO "Classics of the Century" New Year Concert
AR B R e e - at Xinghai Concert Hall, Guangzhou
BN E S ELEED
TFEEA - EfFISEALE Cantonese Opera New Lyrics Competition
TFEEN-BAFIELS Chinese Romance Down the Ages -
Valentine Concert
2007 T ZHEEA LR S - Chinese Culture Festival 2007 - Concert in
FEE Vietnam
3 AMarch HESEEENLE Min Huifen & HKCO
BERE - DEPLEELRIT 2007 Annual Concert of HKCCO/HKJCO/
2007 FAFER Instrumental Classes
2R+ \E - ERREFEES Cantonese Folk Music Concert
2007 BB BME - ik 2007 Hong Kong Arts Festival - Music About China
BHRNE - ERREESLES5 Cantonese Music with Its Exotic Lyricism -
The Folk Music Ensemble of the HKCO
\




X o [l &

Business Review

AR EE TEREZRE

Various Themed Performances to Share The Beauty of Chinese Music

[MERES  BET] REETLENEMEE - LESFHUATATENELAEREREE S RAFLER -
With roots in the Chinese tradition and constantly seeking to amalgamate the East and the West in music, Hong Kong
Chinese Orchestra has organised various themed performances to bring the rich and colourful world of Chinese music
to the audience.

E%EREH Concerts and Performances 2007 2006
EHIE %8 Regular Concerts

E No. of Sets 37 26
58 No. of Performances 69 47
BRAIX Size of Audience 47,371 38,689
FHHBEB R AKX Average Size of Audience per Performance 687 823
SMNEHEEE Outreach Community Activities

%8 No. of Performances 122 93
R AR Size of Audience 160,001 145,563
TR AKX Average Size of Audience per Performance 1,311 1,565

SNEE4E Concert Tours
%% No. of Performances 13 8

B AUX Size of Audience 14,250 23,776
\ /
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Launch of “Music for Tranquility of Mind”
A "Soul Spa" created with a wonderful blend of melody, rhythm
and timbre, bringing harmony and peace to body and soul.

VR ERTT - B L g SR 2 e B o T 52 i o
DRI AIFRRIZH—FRROEL - HERAAIFEMREDRLRR - LEEINBESIHRRIFHEZ R
EB - BUREAEHE  KRBDTLHEER -

Music from the Heart IT — Shanghai Conservatory of Music & HKCO Ensemble and Solo
Concert

"Music from the Heart II" serves as a platform for the presentation of new works by composers, so as to give more
room for creative work and to promote the development of Chinese music. We have also strengthened our experience
exchange programmes with local and overseas musical organisations and music conservatories.

RZETHGE
ERAZEGBIRZ BT E & H£5055

Musical Only You
The Orchestra was invited to perform in the audio recording of the "Musical
Only You" for a total of 50 shows.

AFTEEN - BAAIELE
FTFREABASTLE R EhIISERAL
& BHREBERMALE o

BETLEE  NBIRE AT  ARBK
B o LME RS - L@Fﬂ%ﬁl ’

Valentine’s Concert — Chinese Romance Down the Ages
Valentine's Concert — Chinese Romance Down the Ages and the Cantonese Opera New Lyrics Competition. The
performance and the piece of work that won the prize were both moving.

"HKCO lights up the lives and touches the heart of many through the art of music. | am proud of you."
Letter from Audience
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| Chan Wing-wah & HKCO
B The HKCO paid tribute to Doming Lam on his eightieth birthday in our
last orchestral season. Chan Wing-wah will be the second composer in our
i dedication series and it will be featured as part of our 30th anniversary

celebration programme.

B AR Rk E %R Fm BERUAA

&I1ER
BIER B ELEBAFI0EEALT - FRELNES  BFETEERRDFIERE T/ \BEASKANEEM M
B BEE—E3 - 6 ERRHE - RHEFI0EREFNELELE
B UERELBIER £ SURBBEMFRELENEAER -
FRERENIEA:

EELRGE) i B 13:E3

BIERE VI RESHEXRTOFARM  RAS
(22-23/9/2006)

BIERERINILsE%e JVNUET PRERIZ
(13-14/10/2006)

BREREEHEE FREESLBEM B2
(15-16/12/2006)

MBS EEENEE RREER HFHE
(9-10/3/2007)
N\ Vs

SR EHE R R

LETMBBRIZH  BRTLRAELL  #TSRMEERRRE
B - SRALATBNIHREE - SEARIBHHN RIIEN - BE
ERFHR - BASATRRBESLTAERNDHEE  BABE - &
HRRTED  HRESLAERTR - REAEDHLESSULENES
SRy BESRAERERBALLE  LEARTLEIBAGELLR
BMEMEERERE -

ESETEm R LEY
LEBRESEMIH G AN EEMTETIEY  BERRARBERRLMAIE LRROEFEHR -
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Promotion of Chinese Orchestral Music and Nurturing of Local Talents

Cadenzas of Hong Kong

Cadenzas of Hong Kong is a special programme HKCO launched in entering its 30th Orchestra Season. Hong Kong
composers were invited to visit one of the 18 districts of Hong Kong of their choice to find inspiration for writing
music. Each composer has to create a piece of work that is 3-6 minutes long. The works created have been arranged to
be brought to stage one by one starting from the 30th Orchestra Season up to the 32nd Orchestra Season to paint a
beautiful picture of Hong Kong with musical notes and to pay tribute to the composers’ contributions to the Orchestra.
The works that were premiered in the year included:

In order to help Hong Kong people

Concert (Date) Music Composer . . . .
identify themselves with their hometown,
Majestic Drums VII World Excursions on Wings Chan Ming-chi HKCO has, through special arrangements,
(22-23/9/2006) of Music ~Open, Hong Kong . . . .
organised field trips to the Mainland
ATribute to Ng Tai-kong = The Tiny Shan Pui River Chan Kam-biu Joshua

China for Hong Kong composers. Places
(13-14/10/2006) . .
visited included Chaozhou, Shenzhen and

Masterly Works - Nine Dragons: Dance to Soar ~ Hui Cheung-wai Huizhou. Participants in the trip, including
Yan Liangkun & HKCO
(15-16/12/2006) members of HKCO, the composers and a

number of university students, through
Min Huifen & HKCO Tai O on My Mind Kwok Hang-kei

(9-10/3/2007) appreciation of works, workshops and
\

/

sharing sessions, have enhanced their
understanding of folk music. HKCO has also joined hands with Hong Kong Composers’ Guild to co-organise three
professional workshops on music writing with an aim to nurture young composers who are interested in writing Chinese
orchestral music. The field trips were sponsored by Hong Kong Culture and Art Foundation and led by the Foundation
Vice-man Mr Wu Shou-nan, the Orchestra's Senior Music Advisor Ms Barbara Fei and Artistic Director Mr Yan Huichang.

Tailor-made Workshops on Chinese Orchestra for Composers
The Orchestra joined hands with the Hong Kong Composers' Guild in organising three workshop, with a view to nurture
those young composers who have an interest in writing music for Chinese orchestra.

EREMARRER 2 —NERFHFZERIELERS [EMEDHH P ENTERREHRELNS ) - ER
ARENNESUERS L8R HARNBENME-—SNRBAFEEBNED - ERFF—HHNRLEKE - &K
TRERE - B TRA - BRETREIN  BRREABTKIENEEARE ©

BAFHRIEEEL

Renowned composer Dr Mui Kwong-chiu, a member of
the field trip, believed that "the two events have added
momentum to the continuing development of Chinese
music. He also believed that the knowledge obtained
from the mainland experts will facilitate the creation
process of his future works and also his research and
study of the subject. The younger participants regarded
the trip as an eye-opening experience, calling forth
reflections on music and life."

Dr Mui Kwong-chiu, Hong Kong Composer
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P B Concerts for Presentation of New Works
\_‘ ‘}“!t'”%"“ The Orchestra commissioned 37 works in the year under review to
p !M promote creations on Chinese orchestra music. The two concerts
S for new works that were held last year, namely "An East-West
' Crossover" and "Music about China", both won great acclaim in
musical circles and from the audience.

Messages from Composers

HEXILAE

Hong Kong’s Cultural Ambassador

iBLM 7% 3 P R 2 B

22-30.5.2006

LE ) EBPBARRERFHIRRHE
EMARTEARE  FHERESTLERTH
BETHEY -

Australia and New Zealand Tour

22-30.5.2006

An Ensemble of the Orchestra went to Auckland, Melbourne and The University of Sydney with the Financial Secretary,
The Hon Henry Tang. Various activities including ensemble concerts and music workshops were held.

BEESERBAR 2 RBRT

31.10.2006
LERBFLEIRRBZANBIBTHEAFTRE DAL - BEL BERFERBIFERAELERBIEAF
RAFECREDHIBERANENR - ARERKERETENAKRREN

Hong Kong Trade Development Council Annual Dinner at London

31.10.2006

The Orchestra was invited by HKTDC to perform at a Dinner hosted by its Chairman Peter Woo in London. Keynote
address was delivered at the Dinner by the Chief Secretary for Administration, Mr Rafael Hui, to update British
decision-makers on business developments in Hong Kong.

2]



* B [l &

Business Review

2

R B 2 e

12.2006, 1-2.2007

BRA XL R BN 2 S
MM BRI AR
SIS ETLE - FEBDEBREFLENE
BEAELE -

MR HTEE %

fﬂﬂ %71%%ﬁa%i%'

[ EmEem A
CEY LAt 20.12.2006
BRESBERVENFELS 21.12.2006
BN TRiRIT 2R - EREAE 30-31.1.2007
R LGRS s 1.2.2007
BT EE IR E 3.2.2007
EM K EIBR

(| RLZE - 2B FREER 23.12.2006

Guangzhou and Huizhou Tour
12.2006, 1-2.2007

The Orchestra was invited by The Department of Culture of the province of Canton and Guangzhou Xinghai Concert Hall

to perform in a series of sponsored concerts to celebrate the Lunar New Year with audience in China.

g Xinghai Concert Hall
Kingold New Year Concert 20.12.2006
Kingold Favorview Palace Estate New Year Concert 21.12.2006
The ICBC Guangzhou Evening - Classics of Frances Yip 30-31.1.2007
AlA "Classics of the Century" New Year Concert 1.2.2007
HKCO "Classics of the Century" New Year Concert 3.2.2007
Huizhou Theatre

L Music of Dong River - Global Calling New Year Concert of Folk Music 23.12.2006

P E R L
Sk i 9-13.1.2007

4,
ﬁ o

9-13.1.2007

Performance in Macau

BRFBEEFTFRBNGRRMFT VFHBMUORE - SFHRFR
g | REIRPIREDFEHE R - BB XA ERBE/ALRBRRENRKE MARR

TEEMA MK

Education and Youth Affairs Bureau of Macau has been dedicated to the promotion of arts

and culture among the younger generation of Macau. Each year the Bureau invites an expert in a certain form of art

to perform for the Macau youngsters. HKCO was honored to have been recognised as an expert in Chinese orchestral

music and to have been invited to perform.
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Large-scale Musical Instrument Festival to Share
the Fun of Music with the Public

BRLE - TINREEE - RE—THETR - KEN2001FFHHKE
m—RIe=s %%ﬁﬁ}ﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁ”‘%iﬂ CEHEEE  EmRRFZ
MEAMRNMARESPETLE - BT EFHEPRER
a- *ﬁ%v?%ﬁ&%ﬁ/%?‘ém%w{ﬂﬁﬂ °

Sharing joy with others is always better than having fun alone. In order to further the promotion of Chinese music, HKCO
has been organising a series of large-scale musical instrument festivals since 2001 to bring music out of the concert
hall and closer to the public. Through such festivals, HKCO introduced to the public the culture of Chinese music. The
Orchestra was also invited by CCTV, Hong Kong Cable Television and RTHK to produce a special series of TV programme
to introduce Chinese music.

FNEEERRE
The 4th Hong Kong Drum Festival

BIMESVI-BREAET

Majestic Drums VIl - Mesmerizing Mexico

ARHEREE

19.9.2006 BENLEEHRE

Open Rehearsal & Music Appreciation
19.9.2006 HKCO Rehearsal Hall

BRE

22-23.9.2006 BEX(LH L E LR
Concert

22-23.9.2006 Hong Kong Cultural Centre Concert Hall

irj GRHASEEL%EE D T SN HAEn R RERAR

e Majestic Drums VIl and the Final Round of
B [EBENRI24NEER i
\T\hf-‘-l“ Ho{dg KO)J S}r}e Jy 24 E{rum Comppt}y/on IS IZET I IR

% Fhg tound i
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HRERESEVII EENEERENRIUNELERE
Majestic Drums VIl and Final Round of the 4th Hong Kong Synergy 24 Drum Competition

n%ﬁ-

B =

24-25.11.2006 B L L EFELEE
Concert

24-25.11.2006 Hong Kong Cultural Centre Concert Hall

ERENBOUNILERENS

Accumulative Records of Hong Kong Synergy 24 Drum Competition
6 T 448 B R [ 444% HKCO in the Community

BREANK Total number of participants 2,660

B2EB(R  Total number of participating teams 240

SEH2EE  Youngest participant 4
(SBFR2EE  Eldest participant 83

BEYEMASHE

Nurturing of Young Musicians Contributing Towards the Community

BRPLEARERTEHE LEI - MR EERIEINRIRL - BERHEETLE - BNBEHE © FRR2003FK
VEBRETLENRBELFHLEBWRRERN  LEERY [FXLEEENE ] &k [RESFEHE] - &
FEIA R AR ERRSIF2 -

The Orchestra attaches great importance to music education and training. HKCO actively promotes Chinese music
through outreach performances in communities and at schools. In addition to the establishment of Hong Kong Children
Orchestra and Hong Kong Junior Chinese Orchestra, HKCO has also introduced a "Mentorship Programme" and a
"Professional Orchestral Internship Programme", both of which enjoyed a warm response from local musical institutions
and those in mainland China.

HELEBEEEZE Professional Orchestral Internship Scheme
BEAREEN

Hki/ME (H%8)  luYan (Zheng)

2L MR%E (%)  Leung Yan Chiu (Zheng)

SEBREE (F) Mok Wai Leung (Sheng)

24
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The Music for Love
The Music for Love Scheme was set up with the aim to give members of the disadvantaged groups a chance to learn

about cultural art and the beauty of Chinese music through live performances. Families from different social service
organisations were invited to “Pluckety Pluck - Chinese Pluked String Music” concerts. Such organisations include The
Samaritan Befrienders Hong Kong, Association for the Rights of Industrial Accident Victims, Society for Community

Organisation, Hong Kong Single Parents Association, The Salvation Army Hong Kong and Macau Command, Mental

Health Association of Hong Kong,
Precious Blood Children’s Village, Yan Chai
Hospital Social Services Department,
N.T. Women & Juveniles Welfare Assn.
Ltd., HKSKH Lady MacLehose Centre,
United Christian Nethersole Community
Health Service, Against Child Abuse Ltd.
and Hans Andersen Club. In addition,
the Orchestra also organises regular
outreach concerts and guided concerts
for hospitals, elderly centres, orphanages
and charities.
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LETHRHETBEATRAEEE  BRALKEEAR  AMEREBSHERNE ° 2006/07F B &£
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BB HEEBRREBRZEA 12006 M LA ERIB-BRERRNEE] EEEE2— A%
& ERBEERASERRNAZT LB FXEIEEUBELRAE ULERREZGEERS -
BipEEEER [EREEGeE_TEeH] EFAREEEL— TR8A [ERNyEss] -

- HEENEEHEESEAEIASMEEASEER MMuix(t] ZEIHMATRILL -

In 2006/07, the Orchestra issued 39 press releases and was mentioned in both local and overseas media.

A total of 540 articles were published via major media channels.

One press conference was hosted.

E-news were issued to friends of HKCO, the audience and the public on regularly basis to keep them abreast of the

latest developments of the Orchestra. A total of 106 e-news were issued in 2006/07.

Yan Huichang, Artistic Director of HKCO, was invited by the Home Affairs Bureau to be one of the speakers of Asia

Cultural Cooperation Forum 2006 on the topic "Asian Arts, Culture and Modernity-Dialogue between Tradition and

Modernity". In the forum, the Orchestra signed a Letter of Intention

on Cooperation with the Henan and Shaanxi Provinces’ Department

of Culture, witnessed by Dr Patrick C P Ho, Secretary for Home

Affairs.

+  Yan Huichang, Artistic Director, was invited to give a speech at
the "20th International Congress of the International Society for
Performing Arts (ISPA), on the topic "Remaking of Traditions —
Music".

+  Yan Huichang, Artistic Director was invited to be the guest host
of "Close to Culture (October)" at Finance Info Channel of Hong
Kong Cable Television.
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Our Honors

Bl R AR

Caring Organisation

GNP A I EN  wm i 0006/074E S MRS [FLERIE] (25 -

Caringorganisatigif? Awarded with "Caring Organisation" logo by the Hong Kong Council of
pwircied by The Fong Kong Counci of Socal Senvice Social Service again in 2006/07

2
CASH Golden Sail Music Award

TERBRAKEHREIEZ (FB\REH  BUKM) KEFBEHRRIEAABERECASHE N FLE - i
TYEBERY - WN2007F1 A6 RREFAXCH OSBRI RER - BERKERE -

Symphony No. 8 : This Boundless Land composed by Prof Chan Wing Wah was awarded "CASH Golden Sail Music Award"
by the Composers and Authors Society of Hong Kong Ltd. This piece was
commissioned by the Orchestra and World premiere, was held at Hong Kong
Culture Centre Concert Hall on 6 January 2007, conducted by Prof Chan Wing Wah.

FEHESFE4E (20065F T+ KLHEHEER)
RTHK Radio 4 "Top Ten Music Highlights 2006"

30 EFEERBRIMBEMNE
30" Orchestral Season Press Gathering

B ARMEMNEE  BFEAESEETEPLENRE 18R BRA L HE
B11,000A @ RAEEMFEEEE o

In the Opening Rally of International Festival of Inclusive Arts, under the baton of
Yan Huichang, over 11,000 people with or without disabilities from 18 districts of
Hong Kong played with the Orchestra at both sides of Victoria Harbour.

ARFE —+H#
25-year service award
E 7 AN
é%ﬁ% Music all over Hong Kong’s Districts

Lee Chung-chi

BEXEREEBLEREI REBEL R
RETHE - NERRPEBEKT 2 B
& RH -

Special thank to Hong Kong Police for
their special transportation arrangement
after the Anniversary of the Founding of
the PRC concert so the Orchestra could :

perform at the Chinese Instrumental Music U2

Association set up concert. Drumming Across the Harbour 27
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The Council

Profile of the Council

At the date of this report, the Council currently consists of nine Members. All Council Members are non-executives and
are independent. Their diverse backgrounds are essential to bring to the Orchestra a wide range of experience and
expertise from various sectors of the local community and balance the interests of all stakeholders. The Council is the
highest decision making body and it meets regularly to review present policies and formulate future decisions.

The Council consists of the following members:

Position Expiry of Term of Office

MrWong Tin-yau Kelvin Chairman 2008
(Elected on 18 October 2006 as Chairman)

Mr Carlson Tong Vice Chairman 2007
Mr Lai Hin-wing Henry Vice Chairman 2007
(Elected on 18 October 2006 as Vice Chairman)

Ms Chiu Lai-kuen Susanna Hon Secretary 2007
(Elected on 18 October 2006 as Hon Secretary)

Mr Davie T P Au-yeung Council Member 2008
(Appointed by Government)

Dr Chan Kam-biu Joshua Council Member 2007
Mr Chung Shui-ming Council Member 2008
(Appointed by Government)

Dr Chan Wai-kai Council Member 2008

(Appointed by Government)

Ir Leung Kwong-ho Edmund Council Member 2008
(Elected on 18 October 2006)

Note: Ms Carlye W L Tsui served the Council as Chairman until 18 October 2006

Role and Responsibilities of Council

The Council is responsible for overall strategy, implementation and delegation of policy; approval of annual and special
budgets; approval of artistic direction; approval of human relations matters; and a review of the Orchestra’s performance.
The Council also monitors the strategic direction, financial status and progress of the Orchestra’s subsidiaries: Hong
Kong Children Chinese Orchestra Limited, Hong Kong Junior Chinese Orchestra Limited and Hong Kong Young Chinese
Orchestra Limited. The Council bears the ultimate responsibility for the management of the Orchestra through close
monitoring, strategy formulation, decision-making and provision of guidance. Day-to-day operation of the Orchestra is
delegated to the Artistic Director and Executive Director jointly who are accountable to Council.
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Committees of the Council

The Council has established four Committees to enhance greater efficiency, each having clearly-defined terms of
reference to focus on specialized spheres of work and report to the Council at regular meetings. Where appropriate,
the Committees make decisions on areas within their own authority to enhance efficient execution of policies and
strategies.

Nomination

Finance and Audit Marketing Human Resources

Committee Committee Committee

Committee

Artistic Director Executive Director

Meetings and Attendance of the Council

To ensure the Council receives adequate and timely information to oversee the activities of the Orchestra, the Council
and Committee meetings are held regularly on a bi-monthly or quarterly basis or as required in case of emergency or for
any special situation requested by the Members or Principal Executives. During the year under review there were eight
meetings held and the average attendance rate was 89%. The Artistic Director, Executive Director and representatives
from the Home Affairs Bureau (HAB) attend the Council Meetings.

Except for those meetings convened under emergency or exceptional cases, Council and Committee meetings are

conducted in accordance with the following procedure:

« The Executive Director formulates meeting schedules of the Council and the Committees on a yearly basis and
submits such meeting schedules to every participant of the meetings, including representatives of the HAB, six
months prior to the first meeting date of the year;

« The Orchestra sends a notice of meeting to every participant of the meeting two weeks prior to the meeting date.
Such notice sets out details such as the meeting time, location and agenda;

+ Meeting documents are delivered to every participant of the meeting, one week prior to the meeting date, for review
and preparation;

+ The Orchestra prepares the minutes after each meeting and submits them to every participant of the meeting for
review;

« The reviewed and revised minutes of the meeting are put forward at the next meeting for approval.
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Frequency of Meetings and Attendance Statistics

Council Finance Human Nomination

Marketing

and Audit
Committee

Resources
Committee

Committee

Committee

Meeting Convened
(Average attendance /
Average number of persons)

8
(89%/10)

4
(77% /5)

4
(84% /4)

1
(100% /5)

1
(80% /4)

Attendance rate % (Number of times)

Mr Wong Tin-yau Kelvin *100% (8) 75% (3) N/A N/A N/A
Mr Carlson Tong 75% (6) *¥100% (5) N/A N/A N/A
Mr Lai Hin-wing Henry 75% (6) N/A 75% (3) N/A 0% (0)
Ms Chiu Lai-kuen Susanna 88% (7) 25% (1) N/A *100% (1) | *100% (1)
Mr Davie T P Au-yeung 88% (7) N/A *¥100% (4) 100% (1) N/A
Dr Chan Kam-biu Joshua 88% (7) 100% (4) N/A N/A 100% (1)
Mr Chung Shui-ming* 88% (7) 50% (1) 100% (2) N/A N/A
Dr Chan Wai-kai* 88% (7) 50% (1) 100% (4) 100% (1) N/A
Ir Leung Kwong-ho Edmund* 75% (3) N/A 100% (2) N/A 100% (1)
Ms Carlye W L Tsui* 100% (4) 100% (2) 100% (2) N/A N/A
Mr Yan Huichang Hubert 100% (8) N/A 50% (2) 100% (1) N/A
L Ms Chin MW Celina 100% (8) 100% (4) 100% (4) 100% (1) 100% (1) )

* Chairman of Council / Sub-committee

+ Attendance is calculated against the number of meetings organised during the period of service

Remuneration and Development of the Council and Senior Administration Staff
All non-executive directors of the Council serve the Orchestra on a pro bono publico basis. The remuneration of senior

administration executives is determined by the Council on the same basis as other employees of the Orchestra on an

open contract term.

Remuneration of administration executives is analyzed as follows:

No. of Persons

2007
Up to HK$300,000 23
HK$300,001 to HK$500,000 3
Above HK$500,000 1

2006
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Terms of Office

According to the Articles of Association of the Orchestra, the Council consists of no less than six members and no
more than twenty members. At least two-thirds of the Council are elected by Members of the Orchestra and no more
than one-third is appointed by the Government of the HKSAR, the funding body. The term of office of elected Council
Members is two years and retire at each AGM, with eligibility to be re-elected, to allow for turnover and continuity.

The Council has a nomination process whereby new candidates identified for election to the Council are formally
proposed for consideration at a Council meeting, on the basis of the candidate’s skill-set, willingness to dedicate time
and effort to Council work, team-playing commitment, appreciation and support of the Orchestra and the values and
mission of the Orchestra, commitment to good corporate governance, network connections and other potential value
to be added to the Orchestra. Donation to the Orchestra is not the sole consideration for appointment to the Council.

The Committees

Finance and Audit Committee

The Finance and Audit Committee monitors the financial performance and reporting, budgetary control, accounting
policies and internal control. The Orchestra presents monthly financial statements to the Committee for its independent
review before endorsement. The Committee met bi-monthly, there were four meetings during the year under review
and the average attendance rate was 77%.

Chairman
Mr Carlson Tong

Members

Mr Wong Tin-yau Kelvin

Ms Chiu Lai-kuen Susanna

Dr Chan Kam-biu Joshua

Ms Celina MW Chin (Executive Director)

Human Resources Committee

The Committee advises on human resources development policies, manpower planning, staff training and
development, staff appraisal, and remuneration. The Committee met bi-monthly, there were four meetings during the
year under review and the average attendance rate was 84%.

Chairman
Mr Davie T P Au-yeung

Members

Mr Lai Hin-wing Henry

Dr Chan Wai-kai

Ir Leung Kwong-ho Edmund

Mr Yan Huichang Hubert (Artistic Director)
Ms Celina M W Chin (Executive Director)
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Marketing Committee
The Committee formulates policies and marketing strategies and monitors marketing, sales and fund-raising. There was

one meeting during the year under review and the attendance rate was 100%.

Chairman
Ms Chiu Lai-kuen Susanna

Members

Mr Davie T P Au-yeung

Dr Chan Wai-kai

Mr Yan Huichang Hubert (Artistic Director)
Ms Celina MW Chin (Executive Director)

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee advises on the criteria for selection of Council Members, recommends the best skill-mix

scenario for the Council and reviews potential candidates nominated by Members of the Orchestra. The Committee met
annually and the attendance rate was 80%.

Chairman
Ms Chiu Lai-kuen Susanna

Members

Mr Lai Hin-wing Henry

Dr Chan Kam-biu Joshua

Ir Leung Kwong-ho Edmund

Ms Celina M W Chin (Executive Director)
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Stakeholders Relations

The Council met regularly for brainstorming ideas in its review of the existing strategies and performances as well
as to discuss the formulation of future strategies. Representatives from the HAB attended all Council meetings as
Observers. Various kinds of communication channels were opened up to all members of the Orchestra. Harmonious
working relations were sustained to ensure that different parties worked together for the best interests of the Orchestra.
As a non-profit-distributing organization providing service to the people of Hong Kong, public relations were also
emphasized, by providing up-to-date information on the activities of the Orchestra in a user-friendly manner.

Regular reports and documents were submitted and published to enhance disclosure on the operation and financial
status of the Orchestra. Such reports and documents include:

Overseers Reports Frequency
Sponsors and stakeholders Annual report yearly
LCSD /HAB Funds application yearly
Audited financial statements yearly
Activities summary yearly
Unaudited financial statements monthly
Review on number, ranking and yearly
remuneration of staff
The Council Annual financial budget yearly
Orchestral season programme plan yearly
Procedure manuals yearly
Audited financial statements yearly
Unaudited financial statements monthly
Concert summary bi-monthly
Guest list of complimentary tickets bi-monthly
Publicity report bi-monthly
The Public and Audience Season brochure yearly
Posters and leaflets of concerts 4 weeks before concert
FoHKCO newsletter quarterly
Website continuous update
E-news continuous update
\ /
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Other Areas of Corporate Governance Compliance

Stewardship

Council Members and the two Principal Executives are members of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, participating
from time to time in speaker meetings and training courses of the Institute and all have access to the Institute’s
guidelines and updates on director practices. The Chairman and Members of the Council are frequently engaged in
training directors and speaking at forums on corporate governance. The Artistic Director has obtained a Certificate in
the Role of Company Directors and the Executive Director has obtained a Professional Diploma in Corporate Governance
and Directorship.

Two-way Communications

Annual Retreats were attended by Council Members and all employees to attain effective communication concerning
the values and culture of the Orchestra. During the year, the Chairman met face-to-face with every artistic and
administration staff of the Orchestra to further enhance the direct communications between the board and employees.

Policies and Procedures Manuals

Defined polices, guidelines and procedures are documented in manuals and approved by the respective Committee
according to their scope, at least annually. The adopted manuals are provided to employees for their observance and
compliance in the course of discharging their duties.

Disclosure of Interest

Council Members and staff of all levels are required to make a declaration of their interests every year and to report
conflicts of interest as and when they occur. Any subsequent changes in interest during the year, after the declaration,
are to be disclosed to the Orchestra immediately.

Supporting Employees

The Orchestra provides a healthy and safe working environment for its employees and advocates equal opportunities
in recruitment and career advancement. Privacy of personal data in handling recruitment and the staff data base is
maintained.

Contributions to the Community

The Orchestra fulfills its corporate and social responsibility by organising regular outreach concerts for schools, elderly
centres, orphanages and hospitals. Apart from offering programmes for the local public, the Orchestra, as Hong Kong's
cultural ambassador, promotes Chinese music and Hong Kong to other countries.
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HEgRARGET

Brief Biodata of Council Members and Principal Executives

F/F (2006510 A 18 AEE X F)

"R#HRE

TEATFERATDNTESREZELE  BLEXLGRTRRERSE  RERTE
2ER AERFBRER  RENMHTHEEER  HXEBRERERDFRBIIFNTE
= HSRETHESERARABUIFNMIES  PEEEENARARBIIFMTES 1T
LimitedBYIFTES : BAEHERBTEESHHHAZB GRS  EA G ASZHE
REZNZEREE  LEAFAB(OECD)EXERERSEROKE BB NEEM
BRARERMAIER EMEEENKE °

Chairman (Elected on 18 October, 2006)

Mr Wong Tin-yau Kelvin

Executive Director and Deputy Managing Director of COSCO Pacific Limited; Deputy Chairman and Fellow, The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors; Associate Member, Chartered Institute of Bankers; Member, Hong Kong Securities Institute; Member,
Chartered Institute of Marketing; Independent Non-executive Director, China Metal International Holdings Inc; Independent
Non-executive Director, Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited; Independent Non-executive Director, CIG Yangtze Ports
PLC; Independent Non-executive Director, I.T Limited; Member, China Trade Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council; Member, Auditing & Assurance Standards Committee, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants; Member, OECD Asian Corporate Governance Roundtable; Member, Main Board & GEM Listing Committee of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

BlxrE

ERRAFHLT

EEREFMEBATENEEFITRELRE  BERZAEMMAER LETREEERF
EEHERBRBRERRTIRE, BESMAGES  ARAANERKREEERR,; BHMR
EEFABLHFEZEEKE, EERAERARAFNESTRAXE, BEFIEEBERZEgE
EFEEEREMN/EAMEBRAHEEEES -

Vice-Chairman

Mr Carlson Tong, JP

Chairman, KPMG China and Hong Kong SAR; Chairman, the Main Board and GEM Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited; Chairman, Employees' Compensation Insurance Levies Management Board; Council Member, Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; Member, Standing Committee on Company Law Reform; Member, Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Appeal Board; Board Member, Hong Kong Sports Institute Limited; Member, Dual Filing Advisory
Group and the Takeovers and Mergers Panel, Securities and Futures Commission.
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BlE/F (2006510 A 18 AEERIEF)

PABALKRED
HEEEMEBMaBA  BEERABA  PEZRELEA  EHEESA  BEEME
B REFBRANGH#S NS EREREMEN  EAEFREER - BERMLAEER
HEE BERMEMAEREEZRE  HARRUEBB2F  BRELIAEAREBERE
FRARETERE  BRRERRHEAERLABRKEZEMN  KERBLELAZES
28 BARREZHLTARBUFMTESERFNTES  PERRAREAGELER
HEKE BAERARAGELAERRZBEZE -

Vice Chairman (Elected on 18 October, 2006)

Mr Lai Hin-wing Henry

Partner, P C Woo & Co; Notary Public; China-Appointed Attesting Officer; Civil Celebrant of Marriages; admitted as a solicitor
in Hong Kong, England and Wales and the state of Victoria, Australia; Member, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors; Member,
Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal; Member, The Consent Committee of The Law Society of Hong Kong; practising in the legal field
for more than 25 years; Director, Ebenezer School and Home for the Visually Impaired; Supervisor, Lock Tao Secondary School;
Honorary legal adviser, Hong Kong Juvenile Diabetes Association Limited; Member, The Hospital Governing Committee of
Tseung Kwan O Hospital; Non-executive director and independent non-executive director of listed companies in Hong Kong
and the United Kingdom; Member, Association of China-Appointed Attesting Officers Limited Disciplinary Tribunal Panel;
Member, Notaries Public Disciplinary Tribunal Panel.

FHWE (2006F10 A 18 A EEHRFEINE)

HERLT
FLESERATNSRBEY  BESHIASES  SESHIRERRHEER  EHE
BHEGEAHE (BEADS) AIEE  BIPEEMESHIRee 8 RESRE  HWHES
ZESLE  FAEREEEE  1901FEESSE [HAGEESLME] -

Honorary Secretary (Elected on 18 October, 2006)

Ms Chiu Lai-kuen Susanna

Senior Vice President, Li & Fung (Trading) Limited; Council Member, The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants;
President, Institute of Accountants Exchange; Immediate Past President, Information Systems Audit and Control Association
(HK Chapter); Council Member, Overseas Member Association of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants; Member,
Antiquities Advisory Board; Member, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors; Awardee of the Chinese Women of Achievement in
the UKin 1991.
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BE (BARE)

EXPREEFREE

EREFDQEREE WABRELSEBREQRENREZE  BEESHITREEEZR
8 BAMELMARZBIIFNTES -

Member (Appointed by Government)

Mr Davie T P Au-yeung

Fellow, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors; Treasurer and Council Member, Hong Kong
Committee for UNICEF, United Nations Children Fund; Executive Committee Member, The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society;
Independent Non-Executive Director of two listed companies in Hong Kong.

BE

PREFIZIE L

BERZEFHET  AZRHBAIENARETRERNIERZ160 £5& : BERBRIHE - EH
FHRE TS BRFMFEBELE  SNFHFRBRIE  BERENSUCEHENE &
BREZBEKE -

Member

Dr Chan Kam-biu Joshua

Prolific Hong Kong composer with over 160 compositions and arrangements written for various media in diversified styles;
Associate Professor, University of Hong Kong where he teaches composition and electronic music; Chairman, Hong Kong
Composers' Guild; Chairman, Asian Composers League; Member, Programme and Development Committee, Leisure and
Cultural Services Department.

BE (RFEE)

#EImEAKFE4+ GBS

EBRQHALALEFEE  BASHLITARNBILIENTES  BENTASRER LR &
BEEEERLALERNB/VEZESTR  IEBREEREIR  MEAETRETHE
BB MEBRAITRERF L ES EETRER  2BRIREE  BEERLEEES
EERTE -

Member (Appointed by Government)

Mr Chung Shui-ming GBS JP

Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; Independent Non-executive Director of several
listed companies in Hong Kong; Chairman, Council of the City University of Hong Kong; Chairman, Fund Management Sub-
committee of Hong Kong Housing Authority; Former Chairman, Hong Kong Housing Society; Former Member, HKSAR Executive
Council; Former Chief Executive, HKSAR Government Land Fund Trust; Member, National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference; Vice Chairman, Board of Governors of the Hong Kong Philharmonic Orchestra.
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BE (BERE)
BRigEEL

BREREABMBERTRES
& HERABRRESHNE

BRE BEREERRE  BAERANERE AT

o
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Member (Appointed by Government)

Dr Chan Wai-kai

Principal of Hong Kong Baptist University Affiliated School Wong Kam Fai Secondary and Primary
School; Council Member, Hong Kong Academy of Performing Arts; Vice-Chairman, Hong Kong Direct Subsidy Scheme Schools
Council (DSSSC); Member, Advisory Committee of Education Development Fund, Education Bureau.

EE (2006 F10 A18 AEEIER)

REFAKFHTOBE

M (M) BRARER : REEEBEOERARBIFNTES  FALT - B (M) B
BATZERITES  BERSTEREERNE ' URHEAZERER TR LEFZEEZ
B MMREIEERZE BEEFEGAERE  IBELEMBEeeR  IBRARES
BKE : AIEBEMTEREEE  AIRBEEE ITREgETESHER -

Member (Elected on 18 October, 2006)

Ir Edmund K H Leung OBE JP

Advisor, Parsons Brinckerhoff (Asia) Ltd; Independent Non-Executive Director, CIG Yangtze Ports PLC; Non-Executive Director,
Evans & Peck (Asia) Pte. Ltd; Board Member, Airport Authority Hong Kong; Chairman, Energy Advisory Committee; Board
Member, Administrative Appeal; Member, The Town Planning Board; Deputy Chairman, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors;
Former President, The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers; Former Council Member, Lingnan University; Former Vice Chairman,
The Hong Kong Council of Academic Accreditation; Former Chairman, Hong Kong Branch of The Institution of Mechanical
Engineers.

E/E (2006 F10 A18 BEMEER)

#RR¥XEHL BBS MBE

B (B8 ARAR  RLRnRBERERAR - BAlBERER A BB IERT
BEF: BfERe2E  BEESEEQTRAR  BEEEBERREE : P/ EZES
ZE: AIMEBREETERZE  GEEFReNZE  REEKEg@EE S 8ex
& 1981FBEA T ARG S FBRE - 1002F BB H EMRHEATEA L - 1097 F B &
HE B BT N2003FEBINEFEE -

Chairman (Until 18 October, 2006)

Ms Carlye W L Tsui BBS MBE JP

Independent Non-Executive Director of : MLC Trustees (Hong Kong) Limited, Fu Ji Food and Catering Services Holdings Ltd,

RoadShow Holding Limited; District Councillor, Wan Chai District Council; Chief Executive Officer, The Hong Kong Institute of

Directors; Member, Broadcasting Authority; Member, Small and Medurm Enterprices Committee; Former Councillor, Urban

Council & Provisional Urban Council; Former Chairman, The Outstanding Young Persons’ Association; Founder Chairman, British

Computer Society (Hong Kong Section); Awardee of 1981 Ten Outstanding Young Persons Selection; 1992 IT (Information
44 Technology) Achiever of the Year ; 1997 Member of the Most Excellent Order of the British Empire; 2003 Bronze Bauhinia Star.
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HITHE | BEEE
RIEE%4E BBS

P97 FFEEEEXTRER THER—RIEE - B1997F6 ARBRINER BT LEZTL
B8 - M2003F 10 AMMR ABMMAEREFERE - MRELREELR L5 - 8& #
MERBEFWAABRTELE - OBMMNEES ERIBENIMER—BEE - RERRT
L0 WP RNIEFRELNKIEE  QRETEDRIELE I RFERETEIELE
CRNZRBLENRERERLEZLES - 1 BRERBUEZILAE  BREH -
20014F9F - BER I8 [2001F (L8] - ERBRRIIA (FEEREMR A
A o BIE2000FEABMABRNIERE - BERMERD [BBFHE] FEZEREM
B ° 2004 F REEREEZHELRNETEHE - 2004F - HREBFEFITHRETRREBERAZALZE - RGMHAHE
BETETEERRS

Artistic Director / Principal Conductor

Mr Yan Huichang Hubert BBS

Yan Huichang was conferred the title of National Class One Conductor at the First Professional Appraisal of China in 1987. He
was appointed Music Director of the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra in June 1997. He was retitled Artistic Director and Principal
Conductor in October 2003. Yan was a conductor for all professional Chinese orchestras in Beijing, Shanghai, Taiwan, Singapore
and Hong Kong, Yan has won the acclaim of the music circles in China and abroad for his artistic and conducting talents. In
addition to playing an active role on the Chinese music scene, Yan has also been involved in music of other genres, he has worked
with China National Symphony Orchestra, Philharmonic Orchestra of Beijing Concert Hall, Shenzhen Symphony Orchestra of China
and Russian Philharmonic Orchestra of Moscow. Yan is also actively engaged in composition and won many awards. Yan was
awarded the 'Cultural Medallion (Music)' by the National Arts Council of Singapore in September 2001. His achievements were
simultaneously documented in The Famous Figures of the Contemporary Arts Circles in China. In 2000, he was a member of the
Hong Kong Council for Academic Accreditation, and an Examiner and Arts Advisor of the Hong Kong Arts Development Council
for Grants. Since 2004, he has been a Visiting Professor in many music conservatories. Yan was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star
(BBS) by the Chief Executive of HKSAR in 2004 in recognition of his remarkable achievements in Chinese music as well as his
efforts in promoting Chinese music.

TTIRHRES

HPELT

FENBEFBASREEREL  RRAEFBRAREAREERRHAA + THRERIMNEYE
AR B MBI R ES BB MO FEEMITRAGRRE : 1989F MAR MK EHE - BULIAEK
REBFERE - DNEWE - PR  BEERERE  BRGESRBMELTLER
% WR2001FBFEFRERTMLREEEEREREETHMEE - TREZEEEE &
BEMBRRD (BMTR) BR FEPLHEE —FEER  AAEXREMEZLXIE
EITRMEAAZEGE TRRRMERE/ MEZ 8 (2006) - ERARER  FENEFBABNE
B RBUTBEE  BUCEER  UEBHNREZLINERERTHALREE -

Executive Director

Ms Celina MW Chin

Master of Arts in Strategic Management for Non-Distributing Organisation; holder of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
Diploma in Company Direction and Professional Diploma in Corporate Governance & Directorship; graduate of Professional
Programme in Arts Administration organised by UCLA and former USD; joined the Cultural Services Section of the former Urban
Services Department in 1989 and since then has worked in offices serving the Hong Kong Repertory Theatre, Festival of Asian
Arts, Chinese Music Festival, Hong Kong International Film Festival, Hong Kong International Arts Carnival and Hong Kong
Chinese Orchestra; appointed the first Executive Director of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited. Member, The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors; Arts Advisors (Arts Administration) Hong Kong Arts Development Council; First Vice Chairman, Hong
Kong Chinese Instrumental Music Association; Member, Consultative Committee on the Core Arts and Cultural Facilities of the
West Kowloon Cultural District, Performing Arts and Tourism Advisory Group(2006). Rich experience in aspects of corporate
governance, directing of non-profit-distributing organisation, strategic marketing and image building, as well as event and
performing arts business project management.
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Financial Statement

HEPREHRAE

HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED
(BERBRETAR Limited by Guarantee)

MRS REPORT OF THE COUNCIL MEMBERS

BEeREMAZZHE2007E3A31BIEE  The Council Members present their report and the audited financial
EEEeRE NKEZMEHREK - AR statements of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited (the "Company")

& o and the Group for the year ended 31 March 2007.
FEER Principal activities

20014 818 - NAFIERERBIFRITT With effect from 1 April 2001, the Company took over from Leisure

BRI TRELL R L B B AR 4L[E o and Cultural Services Department of the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region the running of the Hong Kong

Chinese Orchestra.

EARATLAEERAM —HNBEERLE The Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra is the only professional Chinese
R FHABRENRER 7 —  BEHA L orchestra in Hong Kong and one of the largest and most renowned
BEERRES SRR AR T ENER o of its type in the world. The Group and the Company present
AEBR AT T ELKaIERERRER symphonic music based on traditional folk repertoires and full-scale
sl - AAERSERREMNEETE contemporary compositions. The principal activities of the Group
FHRESY  BEATemETE  URE and the Company consist of providing Chinese music programmes
GSEBE %5 WE - RREGNEA of different styles to blend the diverse artistic expressions and

hEEY  AEEEENTBEREELS techniques of today with the traditional culture of China in

B - interpretation of metropolitan life, as well as rendering promotion,
education, research and development of traditional and modern
Chinese music. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the year.

- Results
BHZE 2007E3A318 1 AATIREEREAE  The Group's surplus for the year ended 31 March 2007 and its state of
B L BEABRIENAERES0EEE76  affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the

B o financial statements on pages 50 to 76.

MBS R Plant and equipment
RRARIREBEFAEBERERBHEONEFE  Details of movements in the plant and equipment of the Company
B3 SRR FERIIFES and the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial

statements.
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Financial Statement

The Council Members of the Company during the year and up to date
of this report were:

(elected as Chairman on 18 October
2006)
Vice Chairman

Wong Tin Yau, Kelvin

Tong Carlson

(elected as Vice Chairman on 18
October 2006)
(elected as Hon Secretary on 18
October 2006)

Lai Hin Wing, Henry

Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna

Au-yeung Tsan Pong, Davie
Chan Kam Biu, Joshua
Chan Wai Kai

Chung Shui Ming

Leung Kwong Ho, Edmund  (elected on 18 October 2006)

Tsui Wai Ling, Carlye (retired on 18 October 2006)

In accordance with article 50 of the Company's articles of association,
the Chairman and Vice-Chairmen will retire from their respective
offices and shall be eligible for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

At no time during the year was the Company and its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Company's Council
Members to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

No Council Members had a significant beneficial interest either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Company to which the Company and its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE COUNCIL

Kelvin Wong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 June 2007
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To the members of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability by guarantee)

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Chinese
Orchestra Limited set out on pages 50 to 76, which comprise the
consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 March 2007,
and the consolidated statement of income and expenditure, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The Council Members of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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Financial Statement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Council Members, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2007 and of the Group’s surplus and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 20 June 2007
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B LEHM 2 " HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED
(B ERBREF2AElLimited by Guarantee)

#ZFE IR CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
HZE2007F3A31H FFE  Year ended 31 March 2007

F=E EEES BRES 2007 TEES BRES 2006
Notes General  Development #E Total General  Development #E Total

Fund Fund Fund Fund
FBHEEHKS BEEHKS FBHEEHKS BEEHKS FBEEHKS FBHEEHKS

L'ON
INCOME

Fée R HMEHHEA 4,631,942 1,872,474 6,504,416 4,846,299 1,378,147 6,224,446
Income from concerts and
other performances

BT &8 4 48,178,000 - 48,178,000 48,178,000 - 48,178,000
Government subsidy

BRREE) 5 707,720 1,060,003 1,767,723 429,810 799,848 1,229,658
Donations and sponsorships

b=HESETON - 1,866,100 1,866,100 - 1,904,082 1,904,082
Revenue from

training course

HA e A 6 1,276,069 169,578 1,445,647 918,045 120,160 1,038,205
Other revenue

54,793,731 4,968,155 59,761,886 54,372,154 4,202,237 58,574,391
Xt
EXPENDITURE
SERUEER 7 6,672,030 1,614,988 8,287,018 6,341,189 2,158,714 8,499,903
Concert production costs
HERAERE 8 38,787,243 1,812,100 40,599,343 38,594,015 1,500,964 40,094,979
Payroll and
related expenses
MEHEE L EEX 2,906,718 69,504 2,976,222 1,580,494 18,601 1,599,095
Marketing and
fund raising expenses
Hin & 9 6,197,901 49,129 6,247,030 4,905,234 20,262 4,925,496

Other operating expenses
54,563,892 3,545,721 58,109,613 51,420,932 3,698,541 55,119,473

FEMBARH 10 229,839 1,422,434 1,652,273 2,951,222 503,696 3,454,918
SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR
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TR LEHM [ HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED
(B ERBBE T2 Limited by Guarantee)

ZSEEEMBR CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
2007%3A318 31 March 2007

EEES BRES 2007 LEES BRES 2006
General  Development #E Total General  Development #E Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund

FBHEHKS FBHEEHKS FBHEHKS FEEEHKS FBHEHKS FEEHKS
FRBEE
NON CURRENT ASSETS
MR R 13 903,198 - 903,198 1,206,633 - 1,206,633
Plant and equipment
MEVEE
CURRENT ASSETS
FEWTR TR 15 467,615 - 467,615 440,798 - 440,798
Accounts receivable
BRNFIER RS 2,335,996 37,223 2,373,219 912,772 30,805 943,577
Prepayments and
deposits
BekEFRBRLEER 16 13,212,581 4,990,121 18,202,702 12,773,484 3,770,919 16,544,403

Cash and cash equivalents
16,016,192 5,027,344 21,043,536 14,127,054 3,801,724 17,928,778

REEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES
FERIRRRAEST & A 17 5,603,798 942,574 6,546,372 4,247,934 1,139,388 5,387,322

Creditors and
accrued liabilities

mBEETE 10,412,394 4,084,770 14,497,164 9,879,120 2,662,336 12,541,456
NET CURRENT ASSETS
BEFE 11,315,592 4,084,770 15,400,362 11,085,753 2,662,336 13,748,089
NET ASSETS
i 11,315,592 4,084,770 15,400,362 11,085,753 2,662,336 13,748,089
RESERVES

#X# Kelvin Wong ER R Carlson Tong

T & Chairman 2|F % Vice-Chairman

5l
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B LEHM 2" HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED
(EERBME MDA Limited by Guarantee)

IFSHEISE EIR CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HZE2007E3A31HIEEE  Year ended 31 March 2007

ERES BRES

General Fund Development Fund

BEHKS BEHKS

2005 ¥4 A1 R 8,134,531 2,158,640 10,293,171
At 1 April 2005

FREMEEH 2,951,222 503,696 3,454,918
Surplus for the year - -
7200643 A31H K%2006%F4 A1H 11,085,753 2,662,336 13,748,089
At 31 March 2006 and 1 April 2006

FEMEBRH 229,839 1,422,434 1,652,273
Surplus for the year . - E—

200743H31H 11,315,692 4,084,770 15,400,362
At 31 March 2007 — _— =

52



HBMLEHM2 5 HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED

(BERBREM2AR Limited by Guarantee)

FAIREHER CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HZE2007F3A31HIEFE  Year ended 31 March 2007

Wi &k

Financial Statement

RELEED 2 RERE
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

FEMAERH

Surplus for the year

WA

Adjustments for
FBBA
Interest income
nE

Depreciation

JEYCHR (S200) / R

(Increase) / decrease in accounts receivable
BERFERZE M) /FD

(Increase) / decrease in prepayments and deposits
JET IR T BN / (RA)

Increase / (decrease) in creditors and accrued liabilities
REFLLEH2RERNFE

Net cash inflow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
REEE)

Interest received

Purchases of items of plant and equipment
RERBESHZHERA /(L) FH

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities

RERERALEBZFR
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

REERRANEERERRLER

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

REESRANBERERREEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

RERERALRBLRIN

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

ReRRITES

Cash and bank balances

10

13

1,652,273 3,454,918
(587,328) (381,225)
840,256 706,543
1,905,201 3,780,236
(26,817) 81,266
(1,429,642) 348,966
1,159,050 (357,830)
1,607,792 3,852,638
587,328 381,225
(536,821) (598,739)
50,507 (217,514)
1,658,299 3,635,124
16,544,403 12,909,279
18,202,702 16,544,403
18,202,702 16,544,403
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BN LEHM 2 7 HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED
(BERBMEM DA Limited by Guarantee)

& EB &R BALANCE SHEET
200793A31H 31 March 2007

ERET BRES 2007 EEES BRES 2006

General  Development % Total General  Development B Total

Fund Fund Fund Fund
BHEHKS FBHEHKS FBEEHKS FBHEHKS FBHEEHKS FBHEHKS

FRBEE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

HEERRE 13 903,198 - 903,198 1,206,633 - 1,206,633
Plant and equipment

WA A 14 - - - - - -

Interests in subsidiaries

903,198 - 903,198 1,206,633 - 1,206,633

RERE
CURRENT ASSETS

JEUTIR IR 15 467,615 - 467,615 440,798 - 440,798
Accounts receivable

BRRERES 2,335,996 37,223 2,373,219 912,772 30,805 943,577
Prepayments and deposits

RekERFELER 16 13,212,581 4,990,121 18,202,702 12,773,484 3,770,919 16,544,403
Cash and cash equivalents

16,016,192 5,027,344 21,043,536 14,127,054 3,801,724 17,928,778

nEAaE
CURRENT LIABILITIES
FERIIR S ERT 2 A 17 5,603,798 942 574 6,546,372 4,247,934 1,139,388 5,387,322
Creditors and accrued liabilities
RBEETFE 10,412,394 4,084,770 14,497,164 9,879,120 2,662,336 12,541,456
NET CURRENT ASSETS
EEZRE 11,315,592 4,084,770 15,400,362 11,085,753 2,662,336 13,748,089
NET ASSETS
& 11,315,592 4,084,770  15400,362 11,085,753 2,662,336 13,748,089
RESERVES

EX# Kelvin Wong EEZR A, Carlson Tong

F /& Chairman 2= J& Vice-Chairman
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(BERBREAF Limited by Guarantee)

200743 H31H 31 March 2007
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The Company was incorporated in Hong Kong on 7 February
2001 with limited liability by guarantee. The liability of the
Members is limited to HK$ 100 per Member.

The registered office of the Company is located at 7/F, Sheung
Wan Municipal Services Building, 345 Queen's Road Central,
Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in providing Chinese
music programmes of different styles to blend the diverse
artistic expressions and techniques of today with the traditional
culture of China in interpretation of metropolitan life, as well as
rendering promotion, education, research and development of
traditional and modern Chinese music.

Pursuant to the Government's approval on 14 August
2002, a Development Fund was set up for the funding of
non-subvented activities which fall outside the ambit of
Government subvention and will be used for organising events
and activities to further promote Chinese music. The General
Fund accounts for all Government subvented activities and the
Development Fund accounts for all non-subvented activities.
The council members consider that it is more appropriate to
present the financial results and positions of these funds as
separate columns to reflect the actual results of these funds.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs")(which also include Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for government grants which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars.



LR R

Financial Statement

7 5 3 2 B it

200743 H31H

2.2

23

eI RE BT 2 HFHMBHREER
pd
REBERAFE Z P REE RN
THIFET RAEEE] 2 BB MR E%E
Bl o FRAN M FHAT RIS ETER KR
HAPBERR T BEEATE -
BRGHERNE SHNEBRK
275R(BHERT)
51) fEBIETT
ARG ERNE AnBE2EER
395R (KB ET)
BB (BB 15
LREZE9)-
2EE4R

fEE —BLRHRE
BEHEE

EMRM{ERERENHEEUBHRE
RHRE

A ER BT AR BLE L TS SRR B R R PR
T HIE BB ) AR A R0 3 6 5T A AE 12
AINEBMISREER

EEGHEAE BARE

1R (EHERT)

ERPBREE SRIA  BE

BT

&5 (BERMKE KATEGTERSE

£REEES)- 29NBHAERRE

REETHR BRI BRERE
BE R A

E5(BBRaKE BMATETANER

ERELZEE)-

REE

BB ERMBER PHRMERERE

ERELZEE)-

REE105%

BASFEE1REEENDERNE
200741 A1 B A EFBH FEHIR -
ZIEFT R EAB T EU T EENEE
BEEAEEEAEENEIZ - BRME
AOTEHEN ARARIEEANEE
BR - URESTB AR ENERLA
RAFRTEHRERESR o

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2007

2.2

23

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements. The
adoption of these new and revised standards and interpretation
has had no material effect on these financial statements.

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial

Amendment  Statements: Amendments as a consequence
of the Companies (Amendment) Ordinance
2005

HKAS 39 The Fair Value Option

Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement

contains a Lease

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements.

HKAS 1 Capital Disclosures
Amendment
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under

HKAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies

HK(IFRIC)-Int9  Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10  Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

The HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2007. The revised standard
will affect the disclosures about qualitative information about
the Group's objective, policies and processes for managing
capital; quantitative data about what the Group regards as
capital; and compliance with any capital requirements and the
consequences of any non-compliance.
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HKFRS 7 shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2007. The standard requires disclosures that enable
users of the financial statements to evaluate the significance
of the Group’s financial instruments and the nature and extent
of risks arising from those financial instruments and also
incorporates many of the disclosure requirements of HKAS 32.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 7, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 shall be
applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006,
1 June 2006 and 1 November 2006, respectively.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, it has concluded that while the adoption
of the HKAS 1 Amendment and HKFRS 7 may result in new
or amended disclosures, these new and revised HKFRSs are
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group's results of
operations and financial position.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2007. The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are consolidated from or to their
effective dates of acquisition or disposal, respectively. All
significant intercompany transactions and balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation.
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31 March 2007

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company, directly or
indirectly, controls more than half of its voting power or issued
share capital or controls the composition of its Council of the
Company; or over which the Company has a contractual right
to exercise a dominant influence with respect to that entity’s
financial and operating policies.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement
of income and expenditure to the extent of dividends received
or receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries: (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group;

() the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (b); or

(d) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly-controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (b) or (c); or

(e) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.
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Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of income and expenditure in the period in which it
arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, however, not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation), had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is credited to the statement of income and
expenditure in the period in which it arises.
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31 March 2007

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) contributions from sponsors and donations, on a cash
receipt basis or in the period as specified by the donor;

(b) performance fee, income from concerts and other
programmes, on an accrual basis;

(c) training course income, on an accrual basis;

(d) from the sale of souvenirs, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

(f) membership fees, on a cash receipt basis.

Provision

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance
sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation.
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Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of income and expenditure in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be
clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in
an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of an item of plant and equipment,
and where the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or
as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Computer equipment 33%%
Musical instruments 25%
Furniture and equipment 33%%

Where parts of an item of plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of income and expenditure in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lesseg, rentals payable
under the operating leases, net of any incentives received
from the lessor, are charged to the statement of income and
expenditure on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Foreign currency transactions

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded using the
functional currency rates ruling at the date of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences
are taken to the statement of income or expenditure.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management.



W %

Financial Statement

200743 H31H 31 March 2007

ER R KRR

B K EARIRIR & A A Bl E 3R] HEE R
R BREEEMISTEREITES
BEE - ZFEERBRMBIAREH
PR o B SRR AN T B i 2 ]
TrEgaBmatE - Wit AERERF
RERGEUATADERD 2B © %
EFEHRLEYIRBIOBRR « HERRE
SGETTHSHR E L 2 BB R AR o

EREERE
AEBRESRBEAFEALTEETREK
A-HemEEX—HEeREELRR
g -

PABSRRL A TR 2 B 2

MRAEFBTRKRBREFERAINEZ
ERRERIRBEELRERE  BE
IREEREGERRRESRE(TBRERAR
EEZARAREERR)ARRERMN X
(AP ERE A E 2 BERFIR) TR
BRECHZRHRALEREE - AHE
EZREE R BB E RN SR BERAE
R B K - AR EEBRER R IRT

7
R °

AEEEAHAERNEREE  EREE
ETHHE  HERESBEREPRBERE
RIHERE  YHIFAENEREZS
BMEELETHE  HEEEETETR
BURERI AR HIRRME - W5 L@
AhzeREE (BRAERNEST)
EEYEXBISBNEERE  %B
BESR A —HAFRLEERREMT
ZLEREEN  THZATHEERD
BB E KR EL R - & ELER
AHERELEREERERHEEHR
AR - AIEBEERTEHEARRRE
AHEZA

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Such assets are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Amortised
cost is calculated taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of income and expenditure
when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired,
as well as through the amortisation process.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in
the statement of income or expenditure.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is
determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and that group is collectively
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.
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Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the
statement of income and expenditure, to the extent that the
carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost
at the reversal date.

In relation to accounts receivables, a provision for impairment is
made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability
of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor)
that the Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts due
under the original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount
of the receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are
assessed as uncollectible.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the periods necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate.

Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as
at the balance sheet date is permitted to be carried forward
and utilised by the respective employees in the following year.
An accrual is made at the balance sheet date for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by the
employees and carried forward.
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EEEF (B)

BERIE

AEBERE CatltEaBEe 8GR0
HREAEREEREERMERABMET
B IeEEstE] )  REBEZBESA
SZHA - HFRAERREEEAFH S
ZBEDHEE - REMRE KRS
B - B REt Bl  EERMBUEEY
EeRHA  YERAKEZEEDH M
AEERZ BB cEAREM
K AIRERRREERE -

BRES
ERESKIUMBENENER — LK
NABRRBNEBHEE - BRESH
WK B DROBIR SRR EEE B
BRER -

EXETFIE R kst

]

ERASBSTRER - RS ERE
AHESN  EEE B R THIHMBREK
EEREBYEEA A6

(Continued)
Employee benefits(continued)
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the "MPF Scheme")
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for all of its employees. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees' basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of income and expenditure as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Development fund

Development fund was established for the funding of
non-subvented activities, which fall outside the ambit of
Government subvention. Development fund raised funds from
public by soliciting donations and organising Chinese music
related events.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group
has to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could material affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

Impairment test of assets

The Group determines whether an asset is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the asset. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
asset and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

The Group's Government subsidy represents subsidy from the
Leisure and Cultural Services Department of the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the "HKSAR")
for providing Chinese musical programmes of different styles.
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to
these grants.
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5. i8=h R EB) DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS

EEELTNRRRED
Donations and sponsorships for
designated concerts

HitBRREE)
Other donations and sponsorships

W B W&k

Financial Statement

%8 Group
EBES BRES 31 March B8RS BRES 31 March
General  Development 2007 General  Development 2006
Fund Fund Y Total Fund Fund HETotal
FBHEHKS BHEHKS BHEHKS BHEHKS FBHEHKS BHEHKS
667,720 - 667,720 326,700 600,000 926,700
40,000 1,060,003 1,100,003 103,110 199,848 302,958
707,720 1,060,003 1,767,723 429,810 799,848 1,229,658

6. H{tht \OTHER REVENUE

ERTLERR e
Membership fees from "Friends of
Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra"

RITHEBA

Bank interest income

E&EamBA
Sales of souvenirs

HiplgA
Other income

£ Group
ERES BRES 31 March ERET BRES 31 March
General  Development 2007 General  Development 2006
Fund Fund Y Total Fund Fund e Total
FBHEHKS FEHEHKS FBEEHKS FEHEHKS FBEEHKS FEHEHKS
67,410 - 67,410 68,245 - 68,245
477,253 110,075 587,328 300,156 81,069 381,225
381,303 8,597 389,900 369,415 2,855 372,270
350,103 50,906 401,009 180,229 36,236 216,465
1,276,069 169,578 1,445,647 918,045 120,160 1,038,205
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7. S =5{EE A CONCERT PRODUCTION COSTS

£ B Group
ZEES BHRES 31 March LEES BRES 31 March

General  Development 2007 General  Development 2006
Fund Fund #HYTotal Fund Fund B Total
FBHEHKS FEREHKS FBEEHKS FBREHKS FBEEHKS FBREHKS

REERE BHRERBRR ME 1,451,225 524,404 1,975,629 1,431,766 605,243 2,037,009
Honorariums to guest conductors,
artists and soloists

LEBHER 438,994 323,516 762,510 322,431 562,856 885,287
Transportation of musical instruments
A REL S A S 1,730,868 105,230 1,836,098 1,789,602 120,117 1,909,719

Venue rental for rehearsals
and performances

LA 893,802 19,380 913,182 846,390 9,109 855,499
Music scores, tapes and records
HiZHEE M 2,157,141 642,458 2,799,599 1,951,000 861,389 2,812,389

Other production costs
6,672,030 1,614,988 8,287,018 6,341,189 2,158,714 8,499,903

8. HiE KA PAYROLL AND RELATED EXPENSES

& EGroup
EBES BRES 31 March ZEES BREES 31 March
General  Development 2007 General  Development 2006
Fund Fund A Total Fund Fund M Total
FBHEHKS FBHHKS FBHHKS FBHHKS FBHHKS FBHEHKS
iy
Artistic
Bl 27,808,905 1,252,409 29,061,314 27,904,925 1,117,745 29,022,670
Salaries
= 4,642,396 86,236 4,728,632 4,580,875 65,075 4,645,950
Benefits
Technical
el 542,280 - 542,280 511,273 - 511,273
Salaries
&F 27,114 - 27,114 26,064 - 26,064
Benefits
TH
Administration
Bl 4,695,403 451,372 5,146,775 4,616,273 302,446 4,918,719
Salaries
=l 167,994 22,083 190,077 165,735 15,698 181,433
Benefits
BI®&EF 903,151 - 903,151 788,870 - 788,870
Staff Welfare
38,787,243 1,812,100 40,599,343 38,594,015 1,500,964 40,094,979
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9. Hih&iERX OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

£ 8 Group

EEES BRES 31 March LEES BRES 31 March
General  Development 2007 General  Development 2006

Fund Fund #EHTotal Fund Fund M Total
FBHEHKS FBHEHKS FBHEHKS FBHEHKS FBHEHKS FBHEHKS

WAZERS =M 1,453,200 - 1,453,200 1,447,800 - 1,447,800
Rent and rates for office
e 840,256 - 840,256 706,543 - 706,543
Depreciation
ENRl ~ XAREE 1,500,510 49,129 1,549,639 1,084,787 18,762 1,103,549
Printing, stationery and postage
KENEE 405,284 - 405,284 159,230 - 159,230
Renovation and repairs
HihBTHE 1,929,271 - 1,929,271 1,357,165 1,500 1,358,665
Other office expenses
HiFx 69,380 - 69,380 149,709 - 149,709
Miscellaneous expenses

6,197,901 49,129 6,247,030 4,905,234 20,262 4,925,496
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10. SEEFESZRES SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

REBNFEMSRHREMETIIER -

The Group's surplus for the year is arrived at after charging:

£ E Group

EEES BRES 31 March ZEES BREES 31 March

General  Development 2007 General  Development 2006

Fund Fund #@ETotal Fund Fund #ZTotal

FBHSHKS FBHEHKS FBHEHKS FBHEHKS FBEEHKS FBHEHKS

ZERM S 50,000 - 50,000 43,000 1,500 44,500
Auditors’ remuneration

neE 840,256 - 840,256 706,543 - 706,543

Depreciation
FiELEHERR 1,380,000 - 1,380,000 1,380,000 - 1,380,000

Operating lease rental on
land and building

NABREZE2007F3A31HILFEFTE The surplus for the year ended 31 March 2007 dealt with in the
BB EB1,652,27370 (20064 : B financial statements of the Company is HK$1,652,273
3,454,9187T) (2006 : HKS3,454,918).
1. BEMNE 11. COUNCIL MEMBERS' REMUNERATION
AARBEEK ERMERFENETE No council members received or are going to receive any
=1 WER Bk A & WER (] B A Bl & remuneration in respect of their services during the year (2006 : Nil).
(2006%F : #)
12. iR 12.TAX
RRRAIRE (R EE) F88ikERE The Company has been exempted under Section 88 of the Inland
MEL o Bt NARWEHREFERER AT Revenue Ordinance from all taxes under the Ordinance. As a result,
EBFERIELBHE o (20064 : £E) o no provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in these

financial statements (2006 : Nil).
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13. #4328 R %1% PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

£@ % 2 7 Group and Company
e NS £ EHRRE S

Furniture and Musical Computer Total
equipment instruments equipment

B HK S B HK $ B HK S B HK $

2007%3A31H
At 31 March 2007

200653 A31HK20065481H
At 31 March 2006 and at 1 April 2006:

B 1,524,451 1,603,942 616,263 3,744,656
Cost

it E (888,963)  (1,208,927) (440,133)  (2,538,023)
Accumulated depreciation

IREDFE 635,488 395,015 176,130 1,206,633
Net carrying amount

200654 R1H @ HIBRBITE 635,488 395,015 176,130 1,206,633
At 1 April 2008, net of accumulated depreciation
0 493,170 22,832 20,819 536,821
Additions
FREERE (410,607) (328,712) (100,937) (840,256)
Depreciation provided during the year
20075 3A318 - MIRETHE 718,051 89,135 96,012 903,198
At 31 March 2007, net of accumulated depreciation
2007%3A31H
At 31 March 2007
DN 2,017,621 1,626,774 637,082 4,281,477
Cost
ZEtinE (1,299,570) (1,537,639) (541,070) (3,378,279)
Accumulated depreciation
IREFE 718,051 89,135 96,012 903,198

Net carrying amount
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13. #28 R :R4%( 48 ) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

& @K 2 7 Group and Company
EKRRE E BB

Furniture and Musical Computer
equipment instruments equipment

B HKS B HKS B HKS

200653H31H
At 31 March 2006

2005%3A31A&200554R1H
At 31 March 2005 and at 1 April 2005:

BN 1,006,542 1,595,042 544,333 3,145,917
Cost

E-riin (673,690) (820,943) (336,847) (1,831,480)
Accumulated depreciation

IREFE 332,852 774,099 207,486 1,314,437
Net carrying amount

200554818 » MIBRRFTE 332,852 774,099 207,486 1,314,437
At 1 April 2005, net of accumulated depreciation
#in 517,909 8,900 71,930 598,739
Additions
FREENE (215,273) (387,984) (103,286) (706,543)
Depreciation provided during the year
2006534318 + MBRBFHTE 635,488 395,015 176,130 1,206,633
At 31 March 2006, net of accumulated depreciation
2006%3831H
At 31 March 2006
A 1,524,451 1,603,942 616,263 3,744,656
Cost
ZEHTE (888,963) (1,208,927) (440,133) (2,538,023)

Accumulated depreciation

IRESHE 635,488 395,015 176,130 1,206,633
Net carrying amount
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14. BIEBATIH#EL INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

A7 Company

2007 2006
BB HKS B HK'$

FELmBD - AR 6 6

Unlisted shares, at cost

ERZRIB A RHE
Due to subsidiaries (6) (6)

ERNZHMBRRNFELREER  REREETERY -
The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

TEMBRABZEFBOT :

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

R K &E BRTEER ANEREMS
2 RAZEE AR A DL
Place of Nominal value Percentage of equity
incorporation of issued ordinary directly attributable to
and operations share capital the Company
2007 2006
BERRETEEARAA Bk HWE2 T 100 100
Hong Kong Children Chinese Hong Kong HK$2
Orchestra Limited
BRLFPEEBRAA Bk HWE2 T 100 100
Hong Kong Junior Chinese Hong Kong HK$2
Orchestra Limited
ERBVFEPEEFRAT Bk HWE2 T 100 100
Hong Kong Young Chinese Hong Kong HK$2
Orchestra Limited

Financial Statement

Principal

activities

TR

Dormant

TR

Dormant

TR

Dormant
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15. FEWIRER
SERARNBFLSERRAEENUE
EFAAE EFEH-—RKRAEA—Z=ZWHE
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HREGENIZER - EEEeTHRTBE
HAFRIE o R EalliE R A R AR S BAA
PR EBIESFEL N TREFEE -
AprEEERRBNEP 2B - &
WIRFRAETF B ©

16. &R LERIRLIEH
RIFRIT AT RERIVFEFNE -

17. FEMHIRIE R FERT B R
EAIRBATHE - BER60HHRA
Rz -

18. EEHERH
AEBUKLHEEFABEESTFTEY
¥ -BFEVERERA=F -

M200743A318 - AEERADARE
FA ML EEEMBRARIA 2 &
(RS @mmEmT

15. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The Group's and Company's sales of concert tickets are mainly
conducted on credit. The credit period is generally for a period
of one to two months. The Group and the Company seek to
maintain strict control over their outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's and
the Company's accounts receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. Accounts receivables are non-interest-bearing.

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposits rates.

17. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Creditors are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on
60-day terms.

18. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases its office property under an operating lease
arrangement. Lease for the property is negotiated for a term of
three years.

At 31 March 2007, the Group and the Company had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

& E X 2 7 Group and Company

—FR

Within one year

F_EENF(REEEMSF)

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

2007 2006
BHHKS BH HKS
1,800,000 1,380,000
3,600,000
5,400,000 1,380,000
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In June 2006, an independent third party (the "Plaintiff") brought
a legal action in the High Court of the HKSAR against the
Company and several of the Company's employees (collectively
referred to as the "Defendants") for alleged infringements of
original copyright works by the Defendants in respect of certain
performances in February 2004.

The legal proceedings were still in progress as at 31 March 2007.
Owing to the fact that the nature of the Plaintiff's claim is very
unclear, unparticularised and un-substantiated, the Company
has applied successfully for and been granted an order by the
court which required the Plaintiff to give discovery of documents
referred to in the Plaintiff's Statement of Claim and to provide
further and better particulars in relation thereto. The Plaintiff had
not complied with the court orders.

According to the legal opinion issued by the Company’s legal
counsel dated 22 May 2007, if the Plaintiff does not comply with
the court orders, the Defendants will be able to apply for a stay of
proceedings pending such compliance or to apply to strike out of
the Plaintiff's action.

Although the damage claimed by the Plaintiff amounted to
HK$100 million, on the basis of the existing formulation of the
claims, it is the opinion of the Company's legal counsel that the
Plaintiff is unlikely to succeed in any of his claims against the
Company in view of the unclear nature of the claims and his
failure to give particulars and/or to produce documents referred
to in his Statement of Claim. As the Council Members, based on
the legal opinion, considered that the likelihood of the potential
loss or damage payable by the Company to the Plaintiff is remote,
no provision is made as at 31 March 2007.
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20.

21.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTS OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The main risk arising from the Group's financial instruments is
credit risk. The Council Members reviews and agrees policies for
managing the risk as below.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of accounts receivable, prepayments
and deposits and cash and bank balances represent the
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk. No other financial
assets carry a significant exposure to credit risk. The Company
has no significant concentration of credit risk.

Fair values

The carrying amount of receivables, prepayments and deposits,
cash and bank balances and creditors and accruals approximate
to their fair values due to their short-term nature.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Council Members on 20 June 2007.
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Roll of Music Benefactors

KEHRBA
Accolade Donor
($1,000,000 3tLA £ or above)

BAERBIA
Brilliance Donor
($500,000 - $999,999)

= =1:1 PN
Connoisseur Donor
($100,000-$499,999)

HEFHRBIA
Delight Donor
(810,000-$99,999)
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REEFH: [KEFHE  AREF] - HFH: [2%EE]
AENZEL  BFH - BANEL  dRFENESELAER -
One believes that the Orchestra deserves the highest honour .
P Blance de Chine

L (FZE) B [83kxK] - GEE) -
ShEE - 5ME  ARPBIRREL LS -

One who ranks the Orchestra as brilliant in artistic excellence.

[#8%E : JeK] -

ELRTEEES

ME - HEETES  FTHASHME - TAZ [A5EF)
[NEE—HZTRU] - NERRBEMEESLNERER -
One who accords critical acclaim to the Orchestra.

The Hongkong Bank Foundation

EmiE - 2EEZ Care & Health Limited

BENEEELE Renaissance Kowloon Hotel, Hong Kong
BRESBERAR Lu’'s Foundation Ltd

Z2EEEHE Safety Godown Group

$HE Wt BE - URESZA8N

One who finds pleasure and delight in the music of the Orchestra.

FEHE REEES Shun Hing Education and Charity Trust
BEL(—NL==)BR2AE  The Kowloon Motor Bus Co (1933) Ltd

EEBEBERAA] Chi Kee Investment Co Ltd

TREHEME Mrand Mrs A F M Conway

AR 2+ Ms Pansy Ho

BREXA Mrs Annie Ma

thEETE Mr Albert Wu Wai-kuen

SBHEEATAT Mr Fan Sai Yee JP

FsE/ VA Ms Phoebe Li Chung Yiu

BETREXFE HKCO Fan
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[ZEAh S

Roll of Music Benefactors

ETHEUA
Encore Donor
($1,000-$9,999)

BIARES (FX) : FERZIRREMR
Donors' title (English) : By Ms Carlye W L Tsui

LAEHPRARR

Music For Love

BE BEAEEE -

One who enjoys the performance of the Orchestra and wants it to continue

to develop and grow

ESRI & (F&) BRAT]
®REA k&
SRELL
MRS MR ER S A4
JEES S
BRfEZE S A
R L L
=8%/NMA
Fhikt
BRTATML
BEREEE
i) g
BSE FB L E
BRIBEE L
BRERE

EAK (5)

EEBRRAERATR
BREGAERAR
BT E

Mr Robert Dorfman
ERMELE
MEEE A

At EKRiE
BHEAFAL
FEEE
588 (8%) k4
EEIX (1)

ESRI China (Hong Kong) Limited

Mr Tsui Kwok Choy

Miss Linda Yung Y W

Mr Lam Yiu & Mr Andy Lam
Mr Chau Hon Man

Mr Chan Chin Hua

Ms Leung Kam Sheung
Ms Yuen Hoi Ling

Ms Wong Yin Man

Mr Fan Kam-ping BBS JP
Mr Kelvin Wong

Ms Susanna Chiu

Mr Davie Au-yeung

Dr Joshua Chan

Mr Wong Sun Tat

Anonymous (5)

Maxim Chow’s Co. Ltd
Modern Audio Limited

Mr Samuel W K Wung, MH
Mr Robert Dorfman

Mr Carlson Tong

Mr Doming Lam

Mr & Mrs Tai Sai Ho

Mr Fan Sai Yee JP

Ms Li Mei Vi

Mr Yik Kwan Wing

Anonymous (1)



Appendix

Wi &5




Organization Chart

NCIE S

Finance and Audit Committee B REHZEES
Human Resources Committee ANERESS

Marketing Committee THEESE
Nomination Committee REMIERS
|
Artistic Director / Principal Conductor T I ‘Executive Director
EfiEEREFIEE I 11 THRE
Assistant to Artistic Director Secretary to Directors
Concert Master & : Research & Development Officer i L !
Assistant Conductor Assistant Conductor (Musical Instrument) rketing & Fi Admini &
CLE LT BRI e e P"‘g’a"““ﬁ,%ﬁd,,,mm o and oevg%mem"g | e
BE -HERINEEE REEEE WHE TR ABLE
Deputy Concertrlnaster |
& Principa [ T T ] Marketing & De.,e]gpment Personnel &
& ) P mme Assistant Manager Assistant Manager Administration Executive
L L Programme Programme rons *
Orchestra Librarian Executive - Stage assi:;gm Manager (Educaﬂogsé ?Qﬁ] (Project) TR AR EE ABRITRERE
Section Leadlers ' WEERE-RE BREEEE (HERNE) EE)
& Principals Aarketing & Publici
i Programme Executive w% L, Assistant Accountant
Assistant Orchestra  Assistant Programme  programme Executive  (Education & Ouneach) (Project) TRREMEE BRE A
SFe wmfﬁ (3! ) BhEER i‘E ’ﬂ' (mMn) (EE )(2)
rincipa _
=] (F: 1) Il:uglicﬂel&teuznms& Accountl Assistant
ublicity Exec ;
Programme n ;
Executive (Project AHREEEE(2) ﬁi’ﬂﬂ&(llﬁ )
#E *4E (55R)
Assistant t’ﬁrir;cipais
BEEF (9) Marketlng&DeveIepmnt T -
Administration Assistant
Assistant (Project) S
RS (BE) fTRaE
Artistic Department 0Py 88
Musicians Administration Department  fTEEFI 27
Wi 61) Total #%: 115 Clerk (Project)

X& (EH)
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